
 

 

 

 

 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

MARCH 25, 2025 - 7:00 P.M. 

(810) 629-8631 

 

CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – 7:00 P.M. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – OR CHANGES 

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA  

Regular Board Meeting Minutes – March 4, 2025 

Closed Session Minutes – March 4, 2025 

Treasurer’s Report- February 28, 2025 

Clerk’s Warrants and Bills – March 19, 2025 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

1. Planning Commission Approved Meeting Minutes- February 19, 2025. 

2. Livingston County Sheriff Report- February 28, 2025 

3. Planning Commission Meeting Synopsis- March 11, 2025. 

4. Planning Commission Workshop Synopsis- March 19, 2025 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Final 2024-2025 budget amendment. 

2. Authorization to take legal action against property owners for zoning violation. 

3. Request to amend Tyrone Woods consent judgment to allow for expansion. 

4. Commercial insurance policy renewal. 

5. Commercial Battery Storage Systems moratorium extension. 

6. Commercial Wind Energy moratorium extension. 

7. Commercial Solar Projects moratorium extension. 

8. Request for attorney John Gillooly of Garan Lucow Miller to represent the township 

at the public hearing to remove Chris Ropeta as ex-officio from the Planning 

Commission. 

9. Public hearing date selection. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 

 

Supervisor Greg Carnes            Clerk Pam Moughler 

 

Please note: Anyone wishing to address the Township Board may do so during Public Remarks. 

The Tyrone Township Board of Trustees has established a policy limiting the time a person may 

address the Township Board at a regular or at a special meeting during the Public Remarks 

section of the agenda to three minutes. The Board reserves the right to place an issue under the 

New Business section of the agenda if additional discussion is warranted or to respond later 

either verbally or in writing through an appropriately appointed Township Official. Individuals 

with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Tyrone Township Clerk at 

(810) 629-8631 at least seven days prior to the meeting. 



CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes – March 4, 2025 
Closed Session Minutes – March 4, 2025 
Treasurer’s Report- February 28, 2025 

Clerk’s Warrants and Bills – March 19, 2025 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 1 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Supervisor Cunningham called the meeting of the Tyrone Township Board to order with the 

Pledge of Allegiance on March 4, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. at the Tyrone Township Hall.  

 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Supervisor Greg Carnes, Clerk Pam Moughler, Treasurer Jennifer Eden, Trustees Sara 

Dollman-Jersey, Herm Ferguson, and Dean Hasse. Absent: Trustee Chris Ropeta. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Supervisor Carnes opened the public hearing at 7:02 p.m. The purpose of the public hearing was 

to review the proposed 2025-2026 Fiscal Year Township Budget and hear comments. Supervisor 

Carnes presented the budget and asked for public comment. Four residents made public 

comments: 
 

• Jim Combs said the township was not transparent about the budget. The Treasurer told 

him the budget and relevant documents were posted on the front page of the township’s 

website. He stated people don’t read the website. 

• Scott Dietrich explained to the audience what the General Fund is in “layman’s terms”. 

• Kurt Schulze questioned the Supervisor’s salary and asked if a wage study had been 

done. Clerk Moughler responded wage comparisons with similar townships had been 

done. 

• Debbie Wendell said other townships’ salaries are far less than the salaries of Tyrone. 

 

The Supervisor closed the public hearing at 7:31 p.m. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – OR CHANGES 

Treasurer Eden moved to approve the agenda as presented. (Trustee Ferguson seconded.)  The 

motion carried; 5 ayes, 1 nay (Haase). 

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes – February 18, 2025 

Clerk’s Warrants and Bills – February 25, 2025 

 

Treasurer Eden moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  (Trustee Dollman-Jersey 

seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes.   

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

1. Planning Commission Approved Meeting Minutes – January 14, 2025 

2. Planning Commission Meeting Synopsis- February 19, 2025 

3. Livingston County Sheriff Report- January 31, 2025 

4. Attorney invoices-December 2024, January 2025 

 

Referring to the attorney invoices, Clerk Moughler pointed out three unauthorized charges for 

legal advice from a Foster Swift FOIA attorney; Foster Swift was contracted to assist with the  



 

 

  

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 2 

 

renewable energy ordinances only. Supervisor Carnes said he had wanted a second opinion of 

which documents he was required to submit to comply with a FOIA request. He did not, 

however, have prior board approval to hire that attorney. 

 

Clerk Moughler moved to require board authorization prior to hiring outside legal counsel. 

(Treasurer Eden seconded.)  The motion carried; 5 ayes, 1 nay (Haase).   

 

Treasurer Eden moved to receive and place on file Communications #1-4 as presented. (Clerk 

Moughler seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS 

Several public comments were heard. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Nimphie Road sewer break and odor control update. 

 

Livingston County Drain Commissioner Brian Jonckheere and Deputy Drain Commissioner 

Frank Ervin provided updates regarding the Nimphie Road pump station odor and the recent 

sewer break at the intersection of Nimphie and Hogan Roads. No motion was made. 

 

2. Resolution to adopt the 2025-2026 budget by department totals. 

 

 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 3 

 

 

 

 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 4 

 

RESOLVED BY: Trustee Dollman-Jersey 

SUPPORTED BY: Treasurer Eden 
 

VOTE: Haase, yes; Dollman-Jersey, yes; Ferguson, yes; Carnes, yes; Eden, yes; Moughler, yes; 

Ropeta, absent. 
 

ADOPTION DATE: March 4, 2025 
 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 
 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on March 4, 2025, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 

 

3. General Appropriation Act Resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION #250302 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

GENERAL APPROPRIATION ACT 

BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2026 

 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Tyrone Township Board to comply with the provisions of 

Michigan Public Act 621 of 1978, the Uniform budgeting and Accounting Act, as modified to fit 

the needs of Tyrone Township; 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the following budgetary policies and procedures, in 

accordance with said Act, be set forth as follows: 

 

1. The chief administrative officer of the budget shall be the Supervisor. 

 

2. The chief administrative officer or Supervisor shall receive assistance in 

performance of budgetary responsibilities from the Clerk and from the accountant 

employed by the Township Board. 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 5 

 

 

3. By November 30, 2025, the Supervisor shall compile the information, as outlined 

in the Act, for presentation to the chairman or officer of each department, board 

and commission of Tyrone Township. 

 

4. By December 31, 2025, each department, board and commission shall complete 

the forms requested by the Supervisor as to their estimates of the amount of 

money required for each line item in their activity for the ensuing fiscal year.  

Any department, board or commission which generates revenue from the public 

hearings, land use permits or the sale or rental of services shall estimate 

anticipated revenue for the ensuing fiscal year. 

 

5. No later than February 1, 2026, the Tyrone Township Board shall meet in special 

work session to review the requests of each department, board and commission to 

make recommendations on the content of the proposed fiscal year budget, 

ensuring that the total of estimated expenditures does not exceed the total 

estimated revenue and accumulated fund balance. 

 

6. The Supervisor shall compile the recommendations of the Tyrone Township 

Board into a budget document, all Funds, and shall present the proposed budget to 

the Tyrone Township Board no later than the first regularly scheduled Board 

Meeting in March.  The Tyrone Township Board shall set time, date, and place 

for all required public hearings on the proposed budget. 

 

7. No later than the second regularly scheduled Tyrone Township Board Meeting in 

March, the Board shall pass, by Resolution, a general appropriations measure 

which spells out the policies and procedures of the Tyrone Township Board 

regarding compliance with and modifications to P.A. 621 of 1978. 

 

8. The Supervisor shall be required to monitor the expenditures of each department, 

board and commission to ensure that expenditures do not exceed the budgeted 

amount, and shall make recommendations to the Tyrone Township Board to 

amend the budget when such action seems necessary. 

 

9. The Supervisor shall provide quarterly reports of actual revenues and 

expenditures compared to budgeted amounts, as required by the Act.  Quarterly 

reports shall be provided to the Tyrone Township Board for the first three-

quarters; thereafter, the comparison reports shall be required monthly until the end 

of the fiscal year. 

 

10. The Tyrone Township Clerk has been authorized by board action on September 3, 

1991, to obligate the Township in an amount up to $2,000 without prior approval 

of the Board, and that the Clerk summarize the items and amounts so warranted 

and submit the report for approval of the Board at the following meeting as 

outlined by Resolution #090103 adopted January 20, 2009. 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 6 

 

 

11. The Tyrone Township Clerk has been authorized, in action taken September 3, 

1991, to make capital expenditures up to $400 with authorization by the Board at 

the next meeting.  Capital expenditures over $400 must have prior Township 

Board approval. 

 

FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to MCL 141.412 notice of a public hearing on 

the proposed budget was published on February 23, 2025, and a public hearing on the proposed 

budget was held on March 4, 2025, the Tyrone Township Board adopts the 2025-2026 budget of 

all funds by revenue and expense, as prepared and presented.  

 

RESOLVED BY: Trustee Ferguson 

SUPPORTED BY: Treasurer Eden 

 

VOTE:  Eden, yes; Dollman-Jersey, yes; Ferguson, yes; Haase, yes; Carnes, yes; Moughler, yes; 

Ropeta, absent. 

 

ADOPTION DATE: March 4, 2025 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on March 04, 2025, at 

which meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file 

in the records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 

 

4. Headlee Operating Tax Millage Rate Resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION #250303 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

 ESTABLISHING FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 OPERATING TAX MILLAGE RATE AS 

DIRECTED BY THE HEADLEE ROLLBACK CALCULATION 



 

 

 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 7 

 

WHEREAS, the Tyrone Township Board has carefully examined the financial circumstances of 

the Township for the 2025-2026 fiscal year, including estimated expenditures, estimated 

revenues and state equalized valuation of property located within the Township; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Tyrone Township Board has complete 

authority and hereby authorizes up to .9018 mils to be levied for operating purposes in Fiscal 

Year 2025-2026 from within its authorized millage rate. 

 

RESOLVED BY: Treasurer Eden 

SUPPORTED BY: Trustee Ferguson 

 

VOTE: Dollman-Jersey, yes; Ferguson, yes; Carnes, yes; Eden, yes; Haase, yes; Moughler, yes; 

Ropeta, absent. 

 

ADOPTION DATE: March 4, 2025 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on March 4, 2025, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

  

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 

 

 

5. Senate Bill #7 health insurance provision for the 2025-2026 fiscal year. 

 

RESOLUTION #250304 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

TO ADOPT THE ANNUAL EXEMPTION OPTION AS SET FORTH IN 2011 PUBLIC ACT 

152, THE PUBLICLY FUNDED HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION ACT (SENATE 

BILL #7) 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 8 

 

 

WHEREAS, 2011 Public Act 152 (the “Act”) was passed by the State Legislature and signed by 

Governor Snyder on September 24, 2011; 

 

WHEREAS, the Act contains three options for complying with the requirements of the Act; 

 

WHEREAS, the three options are as follows: 

 

1) Section 3 – “Hard Caps” Option – limits a public employer’s total annual health care 

costs for employees based on coverage levels, as defined in the Act; 

 

2) Section 4 – “80%/20%” Option – limits a public employer’s share of total annual health 

care costs to not more than 80%.  This option requires an annual majority vote of the 

governing body; 

 

3) Section 8 – “Exemption” Option – a local unit of government, as defined in the Act, may 

exempt itself from the requirements of the Act by an annual 2/3 vote of the governing 

body; 

 

WHEREAS, the Tyrone Township Board has decided to adopt the annual “Section 8 Exemption” 

option as its choice of compliance under the Act; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Tyrone Township Board elects to comply with the 

requirements of 2011 Public Act 152, the Publicly Funded Health Insurance Contribution Act, by 

adopting the annual “Section 8 – Exemption” option for the fiscal year 2025-2026. 

  

RESOLVED BY: Treasurer Eden 

SUPPORTED BY: Trustee Ferguson 

 

VOTE: Hasse, no; Ferguson, yes; Eden, yes; Carnes, yes; Dollman-Jersey, yes; Moughler, yes; 

Ropeta, absent. 

 

ADOPTION DATE: March 4, 2025 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on March 4, 2025, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 9 

 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

  

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 

 

6. Resolution to establish the 2025-2026 Trustees’ salary. 

 

RESOLUTION #250305 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

TO ESTABLISH THE TOWNSHIP 

TRUSTEE’S SALARY FOR THE 2025-2026 FISCAL YEAR 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to MCLA 41.95(3), which provides that in a Township that does not hold 

an annual meeting, the salary for Trustees composing the Township Board shall be determined 

by the Township Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Tyrone Township deems it desirable to adjust the salary of the 

Township Trustees to ensure that compensation for this position remains equitable and 

commensurate with the duties of said elective office; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that as of April 1, 2025, the salary for the office of 

Tyrone Township Trustee shall be $205.82 per meeting attended. 

 

RESOLVED BY: Clerk Moughler 

SUPPORTED BY: Treasurer Eden 

 

VOTE: Dollman-Jersey, yes; Ferguson, yes; Carnes, yes; Hasse, no; Eden, yes; Moughler, yes; 

Ropeta, absent. 

 

ADOPTION DATE: March 4, 2025 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on March 4, 2025, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 10 

 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

  

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 

 

7. Resolution to establish the 2025-2026 Supervisor’s salary. 

 

RESOLUTION #250306 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

TO ESTABLISH THE TOWNSHIP 

SUPERVISOR’S SALARY FOR THE 2025-2026 FISCAL YEAR 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to MCLA 41.95(3), which provides that in a Township that does not hold 

an annual meeting, the salary for officers composing the Township Board shall be determined by 

the Township Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Tyrone Township deems it desirable to adjust the salary of the 

Township Supervisor to ensure that compensation for this position remains equitable and 

commensurate with the duties of said elective office; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that as of April 1, 2025, the salary for the office of 

Tyrone Township Supervisor shall be $53,880.00. 

 

RESOLVED BY: Clerk Moughler 

SUPPORTED BY: Treasurer Eden 

 

VOTE: Hasse, yes; Dollman-Jersey, yes; Eden, yes; Ferguson, yes; Carnes, yes; Moughler, yes; 

Ropeta, absent. 

 

ADOPTION DATE: March 4, 2025 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on March 4, 2025, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 11 

 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby.  

 

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 

 

8. Resolution to establish the 2025-2026 Clerk’s salary. 

 

RESOLUTION #250307 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

TO ESTABLISH THE TOWNSHIP 

CLERK’S SALARY FOR THE 2025-2026 FISCAL YEAR 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to MCLA 41.95(3), which provides that in a Township that does not hold 

an annual meeting, the salary for officers composing the Township Board shall be determined by 

the Township Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Tyrone Township deems it desirable to adjust the salary of the 

Township Clerk to ensure that compensation for this position remains equitable and 

commensurate with the duties of said elective office; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that as of April 1, 2025, the salary for the office of 

Tyrone Township Clerk shall be $63,791.00. 

 

RESOLVED BY: Treasurer Eden 

SUPPORTED BY: Trustee Dollman-Jersey 

 

VOTE: Ferguson, yes; Carnes, yes; Eden, yes; Hasse, no; Dollman-Jersey, yes; Moughler, yes; 

Ropeta, absent. 

 

ADOPTION DATE: March 4, 2025 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on March 4, 2025, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 12 

 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 

 

9. Resolution to establish the 2025-2026 Treasurer’s salary. 

 

RESOLUTION #250308 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

TO ESTABLISH THE TOWNSHIP 

TREASURER’S SALARY FOR THE 2025-2026 FISCAL YEAR 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to MCLA 41.95(3), which provides that in a Township that does not hold 

an annual meeting, the salary for officers composing the Township Board shall be determined by 

the Township Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Tyrone Township deems it desirable to adjust the salary of the 

Township Treasurer to ensure that compensation for this position remains equitable and 

commensurate with the duties of said elective office; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that as of April 1, 2025, the salary for the office of 

Tyrone Township Treasurer shall be $60,000.00. 

 

RESOLVED BY: Clerk Moughler 

SUPPORTED BY: Trustee Ferguson 

 

VOTE: Carnes, yes; Ferguson, yes; Dollman-Jersey, yes; Eden, yes; Hasse, no; Moughler, yes; 

Ropeta, absent. 

 

ADOPTION DATE: March 4, 2025 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on March 4, 2025, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 13 

 

 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 

 

 

10. Resolution to establish meeting dates for 2025-2026. 

 

RESOLUTION #250309 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

2025-2026 MEETING DATES 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Michigan has enacted the Open Meetings Act which requires the 

specific designation of the dates, times, and places of all regular meetings of the Tyrone 

Township Board; 

  

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Tyrone Township Board to conduct all of its business in an 

open forum in compliance with said Act; 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Tyrone Township Board will hold regular 

meetings beginning at 7:00 p.m., at the Tyrone Township Hall, 8420 Runyan Lake Road, the first 

and third Tuesday evenings of each month unless a date conflict exists.  The second meeting in 

March is always held the last week of the month for budget purposes. In the fiscal year, April 1, 

2025 to March 31, 2026 the meetings will be held on the following dates: 

 

April 1 & 15, 2025 

May 6 and 20, 2025 

June 3 & 17, 2025 

July 1 and 15, 2025 

August 19, 2025 

September 2 & 16, 2025 

October 7 & 21, 2025 

November 18, 2025 

December 2 & 16, 2025 

January 6 & 20, 2026 

February 3 & 17, 2026 

March 3 & 24, 2026

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Tyrone Township Planning Commission meetings 

will be held on the second Tuesday evenings of each month beginning at 7:00 p.m., and 

workshops the third Wednesday of each month at 6:00 pm. at the Tyrone Township Hall, 8420 

Runyan Lake Road, unless a date conflict exists. In the fiscal year, April 1, 2025 to March 31, 

2026, the meetings and workshops will be held on the following dates: 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 14 

 

 

April 8 & 16, 2025 
May 13 & 21, 2025 

June 10 & 18, 2025 

July 8 & 16, 2025 
August 12 & 20, 2025 
September 9 & 17, 2025 

October 14 & 22, 2025 

November 11 & 19, 2025 

December 9 & 17, 2025 

January 13 & 21, 2026 

February 10 & 18, 2026 

March 10 & 18, 2026

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Tyrone Township Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 

meetings will be held on the second Monday evening of each month upon request beginning at 

7:00 p.m., at the Tyrone Township Hall, 8420 Runyan Lake Road. Sometimes the agenda length 

may determine the need for two meetings to be held during the month.  In the fiscal year, April 1, 

2025 to March 31, 2026, the meetings may be held on the following dates: 

 

April 14, 2025 

May 12, 2025 

June 9, 2025 

July 14 2025 

August 11, 2025 

September 8, 2025 

October 13, 2025 

November 10, 2025 

December 8, 2025 

January 12, 2026 

February 9, 2026 

March 9, 2026

  
RESOLVED BY: Clerk Moughler 

SUPPORTED BY: Trustee Ferguson 

 

VOTE:  Eden, yes; Dollman-Jersey, yes; Haase, yes; Ferguson, yes; Carnes, yes; Moughler, yes; 

Ropeta, absent. 

 

ADOPTION DATE: March 4, 2025 

 
CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on March 4, 2025, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 



 

 

 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 15 

 

 

11. Runyan Lake Inc. request for display fireworks permit. 

 

Clerk Moughler moved to grant a display fireworks permit to Runyan Lake Inc. (Trustee 

Ferguson seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

12. Request to write off uncollectible fire services charges. 

 

Clerk Moughler moved to write off uncollectible fire service charges in the amount of $3,025.00.  

(Trustee Ferguson seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

13. Request of Trustee Dollman-Jersey to attend Township Governance Academy. 

 

Clerk Moughler moved to authorize Trustee Dollman-Jersey to attend the Township Governance 

Academy.  (Treasurer Eden seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

14. Authorization to retain special counsel for pending litigation of Chris Ropeta v. 

Tyrone Township. 

 

Treasurer Eden moved to retain special counsel John Gillooly of law firm Garan Lucow Miller to 

represent the township for the pending litigation of Chris Ropeta v. Tyrone Township. (Trustee 

Ferguson seconded.)  The motion carried; 4 ayes, 1 nay (Haase), Supervisor Carnes recused 

himself. 

 

15. Closed session to discuss pending litigation of Zach Schifko-Cameron McGinn v. 

Tyrone Township.  

 

RESOLUTION #250310 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

Supervisor Carnes resolved to go into closed session to discuss the pending litigation of Zach 

Schifko and Cameron McGinn v. Tyrone Township, pursuant to Section 8(e) of the 1976 Open 

Meetings Act. (Clerk Moughler seconded.) 

 

Roll call: Haase, yes; Ferguson, yes; Eden, yes; Carnes, yes; Dollman-Jersey, yes; Moughler, 

yes; Ropeta, absent. 

 

The board convened in closed session at 9:00 p.m. 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 – PAGE 16 

 

 

* * * * *Closed Session Minutes* * * * * 

 

The board reconvened in open session at 9:23 p.m. 

 

 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

None. 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS 

Several public comments were heard. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Treasurer Eden moved to adjourn.  (Trustee Ferguson seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes.  

The meeting adjourned at 9:34 p.m. 



TYRONE TOWNSHIP TREASURER'S REPORT

     Period ending February, 2025

INVESTMENTS Int MICHIGAN CLASS Int Rate FLG PEG CD Int Grand Totals Each

TOWNSHIP FUNDS Interest Ckg ICS Rate Monthly AVG. matures 8/8/25 rate Fund

General  101 $1,077,117.30 6,017,548.83$      3.26% 7,094,666.13$                   

Tech Fund   141 $51,781.85 5,000.00$             3.26% $56,781.85

Building & Site   145 $95,993.67 207,500.00$         3.26% $303,493.67

Parks/Recreation   208 $5,934.23 $5,934.23

Liquor Control   212 $0.00 $0.00

Road   245 $2,404,618.79 644,224.80$         3.26% $298,002.44 5.41% 3,346,846.03$                   

Revolving   246 $24,966.26 97,500.00$           3.26% $218,914.83 5.41% 341,381.09$                      

Right of Way   259 $34,167.96 $34,167.96

Peg 274 $226,610.08 210,681.88$    4.55% $437,291.96

Special Assessments

Jayne Hill Lts   218 $240.02 $240.02

Walnut Shores Lts  219 $585.17 $585.17

Shannon Glen Rubbish 225 $944.70 $944.70

Jayne Hill Rubbish Removal 226 $0.00 $0.00

Apple Orchard Rubbish Removal 230 $1,280.74 $1,280.74

Great Oaks Dr 232 $14,294.16 $14,294.16

Laural Springs Rubbish removal 233 $3,059.00 $3,059.00

Silver Lake Rubbish Removal 234 $1,236.28 $1,236.28

Parkin Lane Snow 238 $11,387.64 $11,387.64

Account Totals $3,954,217.85 6,971,773.63$       $516,917.27  210,681.88$    11,653,590.63$                 

Health Flex Spending 101 The State Bank Health Flex Total

FSA Account ($10K Loan to Open) 9,505.09$             0.00% 9,505.09$                          

9,505.09$                          

Public Safety- 205 Public Safety Total

Public Safety  205 - State Bank checking 313,021.70$         3.03% 313,021.70$                      

Public Safety 205- State Bank Savings 6,429.36$             3.03% 6,429.36$                          

Public Safety 205 - First Merchant 206,485.42$         0.16% 206,485.42$                      

Public Safety ICS- 205 State Bank 789,844.41$         3.00% 789,844.41$                      

  1,315,780.89$                   

SEWER O&M CHECKING ACCT- 590   Flagstar Sewer O&M Total

Sewer Operation and Maintenance CK  (5710) 489,387.37$         1.05% 489,387.37$                      

Sewer Operation and Maintenance SV   (4865) 5,375.26$             4.15% 5,375.26$                          

CIBC- O&M CD(matures 8/8/25)(6337) 176,821.70$         5.00% 176,821.70$                      

Flagstar O&M CDARS (matures 8/7/2025)(2803) 155,287.82$         4.60% 155,287.82$                      

Flagstar CD O&M  (matures 8/11/2025)(4710) 158,594.21$         4.55% 158,594.21$                      

985,466.36$                      

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP SEWER 2003- 599 Flagstar/CIBC  Tyrone Sewer 03 Total

Debt Service  599 Flagstar Bank 1,168,544.37$      1.05% 1,168,544.37$                   

Flagstar CDARS 2003 (matures 4/17/2025)(0194) 576,443.56$         4.60% 576,443.56$                      

CIBC CD 2003 (matures 3/27/25)(5186) 1,102,756.29$      4.85% 1,102,756.29$                   

Flagstar CDARS 2003 Fund Matures 3/27/255(7453) 497,018.96$         4.50% 497,018.96$                      

3,344,763.18$                   

TRUST & AGENCY- 701 Chase Trust & Agency Total

Township Trust and Agency 701 Savings 1,515.51$             0.01% 1,515.51$                          

Township Trust and Agency 701 Checking 17,914.01$           0.00% 17,914.01$                        

 19,429.52$                        

Road Improvements- Flagstar  Road Improvement Total

Parkin Lane Rd 2010    (858) 22,530.60$           1.05% 22,530.60$                        

Lake Shannon 2018 (863) 255,817.41$         1.05% 255,817.41$                      

Laurel springs (864) 56,420.04$           1.05% 56,420.04$                        

Irish Hills (865) 194,745.49$         1.05% 194,745.49$                      

CIBC- Parkin Lane CD(matures 8/8/2025) 1515 106,444.79$         5.00% 106,444.79$                      

635,958.33$                      

6,310,903.37$                   

Total Township  Monies 17,964,494.00$                 



CHECK REGISTER FOR TYRONE TOWNSHIP 1/2Page: 03/19/2025 12:57 PM
User: PMOUGHLER
DB: Tyrone

CHECK DATE FROM 03/03/2025 - 03/19/2025

AmountVendor NameVendorAppCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 001 STATE BANK COMMON ACCOUNT

1,051.75 CHASE CARD SERVICECHASE CARDAP2447900103/04/2025
704.79 HAMILTON'S PROPANEHAMILT GASAP2448000103/04/2025
215.50 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER871AP2448100103/04/2025

2,970.28 MANN ITMANN ITAP2448200103/04/2025
5,028.75 MCKENNA ASSOCIATES, INC.08AP2448300103/04/2025

546.22 REPUBLIC SERVICES#237439AP2448400103/04/2025
4,150.00 SHOEMAKER SERVICES INC259AP2448500103/04/2025

880.00 KRW CLEANING SERVICES, LLCKRW CLEANAP2448600103/04/2025
325.00 VOYA INSTITUTIONAL TRUST COMPANYVOYAAP2448700103/04/2025
311.51 CONSUMERS ENERGY41AP2448800103/11/2025
150.00 FOX, MICHAEL J.FOXMICHAP2448900103/11/2025
150.00 IVS COMM, INC.IVS COMMAP2449000103/11/2025
258.00 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER871AP2449100103/11/2025

1,092.00 VIEW NEWSPAPER GROUPVIEW NEWSAP2449200103/11/2025
2,025.00 ZASKI ACCOUNTING, LLCZASKIAP2449300103/11/2025

381.75 ACCIDENT FUND COMPANY OF120AP2449400103/18/2025
978.46 AFLACAFLACAP2449500103/18/2025
186.76 AT&T MOBILITYAT&T MOBILAP2449600103/18/2025

12,167.34 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF
MICHIGAN

297AP2449700103/18/2025
535.00 IVS COMM, INC.IVS COMMAP2449800103/18/2025
215.85 STATE OF MICHIGANSTATEOFMIAP2449900103/18/2025
965.00 VOYA INSTITUTIONAL TRUST COMPANYVOYAAP2450000103/18/2025

35,288.96 Total of 22 Disbursements:
0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:

35,288.96 Total of 22 Checks:

Bank 022 STATE BANK - PUBLIC SAFETY checking

15.00 CHASE CARD SERVICECHASE CARDAP146102203/04/2025
9,204.00 HARTLAND AREA FIRE DEPARTMENT176AP146202203/04/2025

15,990.00 CITY OF FENTON97AP146302203/11/2025

25,209.00 Total of 3 Disbursements:
0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:

25,209.00 Total of 3 Checks:

Bank 102 SEWER O&M CHECKING 590

68,432.72 LIVINGSTON COUNTY DRAIN COMM.24AP51910203/11/2025

68,432.72 Total of 1 Disbursements:
0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:

68,432.72 Total of 1 Checks:

Bank 108 TAX FUND FLAGSTAR 

44,906.32 CROMAINE LIBRARYCROMAINEAP357610803/11/2025
431,652.25 FENTON SCHOOLS806AP357710803/11/2025
304,690.61 GISDGISDAP357810803/11/2025
316,605.30 HARTLAND CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS706AP357910803/11/2025

50.00 KLASSEN HAL M & DEBORAH JREFUND TAXAP358010803/11/2025
2,481.39 LESALESAAP358110803/11/2025

130,288.80 LINDEN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS945AP358210803/11/2025
109,633.75 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER871AP358310803/11/2025
271,514.11 MOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGEMOTTAP358410803/11/2025

1,611,822.53 Total of 9 Disbursements:
0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:

1,611,822.53 Total of 9 Checks:

Bank 203 TRUST & AGENCY 701 CKG



CHECK REGISTER FOR TYRONE TOWNSHIP 2/2Page: 03/19/2025 12:57 PM
User: PMOUGHLER
DB: Tyrone

CHECK DATE FROM 03/03/2025 - 03/19/2025

AmountVendor NameVendorAppCheckBankCheck Date

2,440.00 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER871AP212720303/18/2025
488.01 TYRONE TOWNSHIP96AP212820303/18/2025

2,928.01 Total of 2 Disbursements:
0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:

2,928.01 Total of 2 Checks:

1,743,681.22 Report Total of 37 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
1,743,681.22 Report Total of 37 Checks:



COMMUNICATION #1 
 

Planning Commission Approved Meeting Minutes- 
February 19, 2025. 



 

        Pg. 1 Feb.19, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes APPROVED 
 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 1 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  2 
February 19, 2025   6:00 p.m. 3 

 4 
This meeting was held at the Tyrone Township Hall 5 

 6 
PRESENT: Jon Ward, Rich Erickson, Chris Ropeta, Kevin Ross, Zach Tucker, Bill 7 
Wood, and Garrett Ladd 8 
 9 
ABSENT: None 10 
 11 
OTHERS PRESENT: Ross Nicholson and Gage Belko (Zoom) 12 
 13 
CALL TO ORDER: Jon Ward called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 14 
 15 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  16 
 17 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Jon Ward moved to amend the agenda by moving 18 
New Business #1 ahead of all other business. Rich Erickson supported the motion. The 19 
motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  20 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: January 14, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 21 

Rich Erickson made a motion to approve the January 14, 2025, regular meeting & 22 
public hearing minutes as amended.  There was one minor typo. Zach Tucker 23 
supported the motion. The motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  24 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC: One comment was received. 25 

NEW BUSINESS:  26 
 27 

1) Eby Sight Light Evaluation Request: Jon Ward and Ross Nicholson 28 
explained the process for sight line evaluations as described in the Zoning 29 
Ordinance. The applicants presented their proposal to the Planning 30 
Commission.  They explained that they were previously approved for this 31 
location by the Planning Commission back in 2019.  32 
 33 
Jon Ward temporarily opened the floor to accept public comments from 34 
neighbors in attendance who had voiced their desire to be heard. Public 35 
comments were received in opposition to the proposed location of the Eby’s 36 
new house. One letter was read from a neighbor immediately adjacent to the 37 
Eby’s lot who supported the proposal. The Planning Commission discussed 38 
the proposal and determined they would like to visit the site and gather 39 
additional information from the applications before deciding. The Planning 40 
Commission asked Ross Nicholson to investigate the legal aspects of a 41 



 

        Pg. 2 Feb.19, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes APPROVED 
 

potential site visit and to explore potential options to allow the Planning 42 
Commission to evaluate the property in person. 43 
 44 

OLD BUSINESS: 45 
 46 

1) EI – Extractive Industrial Zoning Ordinance Amendments: The Planning 47 
Commission discussed the proposed ordinance amendments. Rich Erickson 48 
recommended Township Board approval of the proposed Zoning Ordinance 49 
text amendments to Article 17, Section 17.03.L (M-2, Heavy Industrial District, 50 
Special Land Uses). Kevin Ross supported the motion, and it carried by 51 
unanimous voice vote.  Zach Tucker recommended Township Board approval 52 
of the proposed Zoning Ordinance text amendment to Article 19, all sections, 53 
EI – Extractive Industrial District. Kevin Ross supported the motion, and it 54 
carried by unanimous voice vote.  Both were conditional upon the correction 55 
of a typo present in all three documents (“Tyrone” was misspelled in the 56 
Certification Section).  57 
 58 

2) Utility-Scale Solar, Wind, and Battery Storage Overlay Zoning District 59 
Map: The Planning Commission briefly discussed the latest draft of the 60 
updated overlay district map.  They discussed additional options with Gage 61 
Belko. The Planning Commission requested that McKenna revise the draft 62 
map based on the feedback provided. 63 
 64 

3) Michigan Medical Marihuana Act (MMMA) Caregiver Regulations: The 65 
Planning Commission discussed the topic with Gage Belko and went through 66 
the memo prepared by McKenna. The Planning Commission provided Gage 67 
with feedback to aid in the drafting of Zoning Ordinance text amendments for 68 
review at a future meeting. 69 

  70 
CALL TO PUBLIC: Public comments were received. 71 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS:  72 

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 pm. 73 

 74 



COMMUNICATION #2 
 

Livingston County Sheriff Report- February 28, 2025 



LIVINGSTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

FEBRUARY 2025 CALLS FOR SERVICE

MICHIGAN STATE POLICE

FEBRUARY 2025 CALLS FOR SERVICE



Nature # Events

ABANDONED VEHICLE 2
ANIMAL COMPLAINT 5
AREA CHECK 1
ASSIST EMS 16
ASSIST FIRE DEPARTMENT 1
ASSIST OTHER AGENCY 4
BE REPORT ONLY 1
BOL 1
CITIZEN ASSIST 3
CIVIL COMPLAINT 1
CRIMINAL SEXUAL CONDUCT REPORT 1
DISTURBANCE/TROUBLE 1
DOMESTIC PHYSICAL IN PROGRESS 1
DOMESTIC VERBAL 5
EXTRICATION - MOTOR VEH ACC 1
FOLLOW UP 1
FRAUD 3
HAZARD 7
HIT AND RUN ACCIDENT 1
INTIMIDATION THREATS HARASSMEN 4
LARCENY 1
LOST/FOUND PROPERTY 1
MENTAL/CMH/PSYCH 1
MISSING PERSON/RUN-A-WAY 3
MOTORIST ASSIST 5
NOISE COMPLAINTS 1
PATROL INFORMATION 2
PDA 14
PPO VIOLATION 1
ROAD RUNOFF 1
SUBPOENA SERVICE 1
SUICIDAL SUBJECT 1
SUSPICIOUS PERSON 1
SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 2
UNKNOWN ACCIDENT 3
VIN INSPECTION 1
WELFARE CHECK 7

TOTAL: 106

LIVINGSTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

TYRONE TOWNSHIP FEBRUARY 2025



NUMBER OF RESPONSE TIME NUMBER OF RESPONSE TIME

CALLS CONTRACT TIME CALLS NON CONTRACT TIME

TOWNSHIP 3:00PM - 11:00PM 3:00PM - 11:00PM 11:00PM - 3:00PM 11:00PM - 3:00PM TOTAL

BRIGHTON 46 32:06 72 34:22 118

COHOCTAH 8 34:04 23 1:09:29 31

CONWAY 7 22:51 16 37:17 23

DEERFIELD 14 33:01 20 55:05 34

GENOA 100 27:03 127 22:54 227

HANDY 28 29:48 39 34:31 67

HARTLAND 72 31:35 119 23:06 191

HOWELL 57 27:51 78 23:57 135

IOSCO 11 37:57 15 26:03 26

MARION 41 26:16 43 27:27 84

OCEOLA 33 29:43 61 24:10 94

PUTNAM 26 28:51 33 27:08 59

TYRONE 57 19:59 49 52:21 106



MONTH CALLS FOR SERVICE TICKETS WRITTEN ARRESTS

JANUARY 145 26 3

FEBRUARY 106 25 3

MARCH

APRIL

MAY

JUNE

JULY

AUGUST

SEPTEMBER

OCTOBER

NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

YTD TOTALS: 251 51 6

TYRONE TOWNSHIP



BRIGHTON COHOCTAH CONWAY DEERFIELD

JANUARY 138 JANUARY 44 JANUARY 29 JANUARY 29

FEBRUARY 118 FEBRUARY 31 FEBRUARY 2 FEBRUARY 34

MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

YTD TOTAL: 256 75 31 63

JANUARY 25 JANUARY 7 JANUARY 8 JANUARY 4

FEBRUARY 38 FEBRUARY 3 FEBRUARY 0 FEBRUARY 5

MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

YTD TOTAL: 63 10 8 9

JANUARY 3 JANUARY 2 JANUARY 2 JANUARY 1

FEBRUARY 8 FEBRUARY 1 FEBRUARY 1 FEBRUARY 0

MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

YTD TOTAL: 11 3 3 1

ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS

TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN

CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE



HARTLANDHANDYGENOA

JANUARY 239 JANUARY 72 JANUARY 230

FEBRUARY 227 FEBRUARY 67 FEBRUARY 191

MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

466 139 421

JANUARY 66 JANUARY 23 JANUARY 66

FEBRUARY 60 FEBRUARY 13 FEBRUARY 36

MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

126 36 102

JANUARY 5 JANUARY 2 JANUARY 2

FEBRUARY 8 FEBRUARY 6 FEBRUARY 4

MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

13 8 6

ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS

TICKETS WRITTENTICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN

CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE



HOWELL IOSCO MARION

JANUARY 128 JANUARY 39 JANUARY 105

FEBRUARY 135 FEBRUARY 26 FEBRUARY 84

MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER #REF! DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

#REF! 65 189

JANUARY 57 JANUARY 5 JANUARY 21

FEBRUARY 41 FEBRUARY 3 FEBRUARY 10

MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER #REF! DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

#REF! 8 31

JANUARY 2 JANUARY 1 JANUARY 1

FEBRUARY 6 FEBRUARY 1 FEBRUARY 3

MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

8 2 4

ARRESTS

TICKETS WRITTEN

ARRESTS ARRESTS

TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN

CALLS FOR SERVICECALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE



TYRONEOCEOLA PUTNAM

JANUARY 128 JANUARY 59 JANUARY 145

FEBRUARY 94 FEBRUARY 59 FEBRUARY 106

MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

222 118 251

JANUARY 31 JANUARY 11 JANUARY 26

FEBRUARY 29 FEBRUARY 9 FEBRUARY 25

MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

60 20 51

JANUARY 2 JANUARY 2 JANUARY 3

FEBRUARY 4 FEBRUARY 0 FEBRUARY 3

MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 0

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

6 2 6

ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS

TICKETS WRITTENTICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN

CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE



COMMUNICATION #3 
 

Planning Commission Meeting Synopsis-  
March 11, 2025 



TYRONE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING SYNOPSIS 

March 11, 2025    7:00 p.m. 

This meeting was held at the Tyrone Township Hall 

Present:   Jon Ward, Rich Erickson, Zach Tucker, Bill Wood, and Garrett Ladd 

Absent:   Chris Ropeta & Kevin Ross 

Others Present:   Ross Nicholson  

CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 p.m. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Approved as presented 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: Approved as presented 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC: A public comment was received. 

OLD BUSINESS:  

1. Utility-Scale Solar, Wind, and Battery Storage Overlay Zoning District Map:  

The item was deferred to the next Workshop meeting. 

2. Michigan Medical Marihuana Act (MMMA) Caregiver Regulations: 

The item was deferred to the next Workshop meeting. 

3. Eby Sight Line Evaluation Request:   

The Planning Commission discussed the request and described the standards to 
make the determination.  They utilized GIS mapping to evaluate potential sight line 
impacts to adjacent properties.  They established a minimum rear yard setback for 
the proposed dwelling to be 580 feet from the ordinary high-water mark of Marl 
Lake. 

4. Peabody Ice Climbing Special Land Use: 

The Planning Commission summarized the status of the application with the 
applicant and amongst themselves.  The applicant and the applicant’s agent 
elaborated on the items previously requested by the Planning Commission.  The 



Planning Commission moved to recommend Township Board approval of the 
Special Land Use application with conditions.  

CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Several public comments were received. 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS: Jon Ward briefly addressed a public comment regarding 
Hogan Rd.  The next Workshop meeting was confirmed for Wednesday 03/19/2025, 
beginning at 6:00 pm. 

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 8:54 p.m. 

 



COMMUNICATION #4 
 

Planning Commission Workshop Synopsis-  
March 19, 2025 



TYRONE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
WORKSHOP MEETING SYNOPSIS 

March 19, 2025    6:00 p.m. 

This meeting was held at the Tyrone Township Hall 

Present:   Jon Ward, Kevin Ross, Zach Tucker, Bill Wood, and Chris Ropeta 

Absent:   Garrett Ladd & Rich Erickson 

Others Present:   Ross Nicholson, Gage Belko, and Mario Ortega 

CALL TO ORDER: 6:02 p.m. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Approved as presented 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Several public comments were received. 

OLD BUSINESS:  

1. Utility-Scale Solar, Wind, and Battery Storage Overlay Zoning District Map:  

The Planning Commission reviewed the latest draft map documents prepared by 
McKenna.  They discussed the current proposed overlay district boundaries.  It was 
determined that the majority of the Planning Commission was in favor of the latest 
proposed boundaries.  No action was taken.  

2. Michigan Medical Marihuana Act (MMMA) Caregiver Regulations: 

Mario Ortega provided the Planning Commission with background information on 
Michigan Marijuana laws and presented a draft of proposed Zoning ordinance text 
amendments.  The Planning Commission discussed the draft amendments with 
Mario Ortega and recommended changes.   They also discussed the possibility of 
drafting a regulatory ordinance specific to MMMA caregiver operations.  No action 
was taken 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Several public comments were received. 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS: None. 

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 

 



NEW BUSINESS #1 
 

Final 2024-2025 budget amendment. 



Proposed Final Budget Amendments by Fund for Fiscal Year 2024/2025

Fund Department Account No. Account Name Current Budget

Current Balance as of 

3/18/25

Suggested 

Amendment

101 - GENERAL FUND Twp Board 101-101-806.000 Consultants 7,500.00$           18,975.80$                          25,000.00$              

101 - GENERAL FUND Twp Board 101-101-855.003 Computer Software Annual Maintenance -$                     10,042.38$                          12,000.00$              

101 - GENERAL FUND Twp Board 101-101-971.001 Capital Outlay -$                     9,213.00$                            9,213.00$                

101 - GENERAL FUND Other Exp 101-277-711.000 Social Security - Employer Expense 43,260.00$         46,326.86$                          47,000.00$              

101 - GENERAL FUND Other Exp 101-277-718.000 Health & Dental Insurance 145,000.00$       149,942.92$                        155,000.00$           

101 - GENERAL FUND Other Exp 101-277-816.002 General Liability Insurance 23,100.00$         25,946.75$                          25,947.00$              

101 - GENERAL FUND Other Exp 101-277-816.004 Workers Compensation Insurance 4,000.00$           6,353.00$                            6,353.00$                

101 - GENERAL FUND 101-448-929.000 Street Lighting 2,546.00$           2,293.27$                            2,650.00$                

218 - JAYNE HILL STREET LIGHTING FUND 218-448-929.000 Street Lighting 1,200.00$           1,212.12$                            1,340.00$                

219 - WALNUT SHORES STREET LIGHTING FUND 219-448-929.000 Street Lighting 160.00$               151.53$                                200.00$                   

225- SHANNON GLEN RUBBISH REMOVAL FUND 225-528-805.003 Legal Fees -$                     165.00$                                165.00$                   



NEW BUSINESS #2 
 

Authorization to take legal action against property 
owners for zoning violation. 



 
 

7415 Linden Road Enforcement Timeline: 
 

 
• 10/6/21: Pulled permits to demo garage and do foundation repairs (work never done) 

 
• 3/08/22: Pulled permit waiver to do remodel work (work never done) 

 
• 9/26/22: Amended permit – no longer adding bathroom or finishing basement (The septic is 

existing non-conforming & would need to be updated) 
 

• 6/21/24: Nearly 3 years – no work done. House is not secure. Livingston County Building 
Department inspected  and sent report (attached). Determined it to be in violation of 
Livingston County Maintenance of Housing & Property Code 500.01. House must be 
demolished or owner must provide report by licensed architect/engineer that it can be 
rebuilt. 
 

• 12/3/24: Owner says she is selling to new owner who can repair the house. 
 

• 1/16/25: Have not heard from her since the 12/3 email. The property is still in her name. 
 

• 1/30/25: Spoke to Greg and me; said she will provide engineering report as requested by 
county and repair the house.  Asked us to hold off on sending this to you. 
 

• 2/25/25: Neighbor came in to say the house is still in the same condition and nothing has 
been done. Found the listing for sale on Zillow today. The owner is still responsible for 
securing the home while selling it. 
 

• 02/25/25: Attorney Charles Widmaier sent letter with deadlines.  
 

• 03/11/25: Inspected property.  House is still in same condition and not boarded up. 
 

Rectangle



Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle





Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle





 1 

 

 

June 21, 2024 
 
 

 

Karie Carter 
Tyron TWP Planning and Zoning Administrator 
10408 Center Road 
Fenton MI 48430 
 
 
RE: Unsafe Structure-7415 Linden Rd.  
Property ID: 04-30-200-028 
 
Dear Karie, 
 
The Livingston County Building Department has investigated the building at the location noted above. The 
structure is in violation of the Livingston County Maintenance of Housing and Property Code 500.01. The 
structure was inspected on June 11th, 2024.  
 
The structure appears to be an older single-family home. The home appears to be abandoned for years. 
The inspection was limited to a visual inspection of the exterior. No measurements were taken. No 
specific structural elements were inspected to determine their code compliance or to test their integrity or 
strength. The building is in violation for numerous reasons including but not limited to: 
 

1. The entire building is in disrepair and a in danger of imminent collapse.  

2. Some areas have already collapsed. 

3. The entire structure shows signs of rot and dilapidation through a lack of maintenance. 

4. Areas of the roof have collapsed. 

5. There is no operating electrical service.  

6. There are signs that the building is infested with vermin.   

7. There are entry points that allow the elements and vermin to enter.  
8. It is unknown whether an operational well and septic system exists.  

 

We recommend that the Township seek remediation of these violations. Staff’s opinion is, the most 
practical approach is to demolish the structure and properly dispose of these materials. It is doubtful that 
any of the existing damaged components could be salvaged.  
 
Alternatively, to restore this structure to a habitable or usable condition; we ask that a licensed design 
professional; an engineer or architect, evaluate the structure starting with the foundations and submit a 
report to the Livingston County Building Department. The design professional’s report should include the 
scope of the work needed to bring this building into code compliance.  
 
Prior to any construction or demolition, the owner or contractor shall obtain permits from Tyrone Township 
and the appropriate Livingston County permitting agencies. The permit application shall include the 
design professional’s evaluation and 2 copies of detailed architectural drawings stamped by an architect 
or engineer. The plans shall be of sufficient clarity to indicate the location, nature and extent of the work 
proposed and show in detail that it will conform to the provisions of the current Michigan Residential 
Code. 

LIVINGSTON COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING INSPECTION 

 
2300 E. Grand River, Suite 104  

Phone: 517.546.3240 Fax: 517.546.7461 

Web Site: LivGov.com/building 

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle



2

It is unknown whether a working well and the system exists. A licensed well and septic contractor will 
need to verify the existence and working condition of a well and septic system and submit a report the 
Livingston County Health Department for review. Alternatively, a contractor could install a new well and 
septic system if required.

The scope of all these repairs will require building permits from Tyrone Township and the Livingston 
County Permitting agencies as applicable.  
  
Respectfully,

Jim Rowell
Livingston County Building Official













































 



 



 



NEW BUSINESS #3 
 

Request to amend Tyrone Woods consent judgment to 
allow for expansion. 



FreeText
#1 - April 23, 1998













FreeText
#2 - June 27, 2000





























FreeText
#3 - June 28, 2002































FreeText
#4 - August 31, 2006

















FreeText
#5 - November 7, 2008



























FreeText
#6 - August 13, 2010













FreeText
#7 - August 13, 2010















FreeText
#8 - August 26, 2013



















































FreeText
#9 - August 27, 2013



















































NEW BUSINESS #4 
 

Commercial insurance policy renewal. 

























































NEW BUSINESS #5 
 

Commercial Battery Storage Systems moratorium 
extension. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION #2503xx 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

MORATORIUM ON BATTERY STORAGE SYSTEMS 

2nd EXTENSION 

 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, 2006 P.A. being MCL 125.3101 et seq., 

authorizes Tyrone Township (the "Township") to adopt reasonable regulations to control the 

establishment and use of Commercial Large Scale Battery Storage Systems in accordance with 

the Township's Master Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Township has become aware of an increase of Commercial Large Scale 

Battery Storage Systems in the region, which is an emerging land use not sufficiently 

contemplated in the current Master Plan nor by the current zoning for anywhere in the Township; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Tyrone Township is in the process of reviewing its zoning for the 

purpose of updating it to include recognition of Commercial Large Scale Battery Storage Systems 

in the Township as an emerging land use in the region; and 

 

WHEREAS, integration of Commercial Large Scale Battery Storage Systems land use 

within the Township's existing land uses requires suitable regulations and controls to ensure 

compliance with the Township's Master Plan, among other things, by preserving agricultural 

property, and for the protection of general health, safety and welfare of all of the Township's 

residents; 

 

WHEREAS, this Board believes it is prudent and wise in light of the emergence of 

Commercial Large Scale Battery Storage Systems land uses in the region, to assure proper 

locating and regulation of these land uses in the Township and must consider this Resolution for 

Moratorium on Commercial Large Scale Battery Storage Systems so as to better protect the public 

health, safety, and Welfare of Township residents; and 

 

WHEREAS, imposing a moratorium, on a limited temporary basis, is reasonable and 

necessary in order to allow the Township to fully explore, analyze, research and develop proposed 

amendments to the Master Plan and the Township Zoning Ordinance, and to make 

recommendations to the Township Board regarding such amendments applicable to Commercial 

Large Scale Battery Storage Systems uses in the Township; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Tyrone Township Board previously adopted a moratorium for six (6) 

months by Resolution #240902 and which expires on March 26, 2025,  



 

2 

 

Resolution #2503xx 

Moratorium on Battery Storage Projects 

2nd Extension 

 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, a moratorium is hereby imposed upon the 

issuance of any and all permits, licenses, or approvals for any property subject to or under the 

jurisdiction of the Township's Zoning Ordinance for the establishment or use of any new 

Commercial Large Scale Battery Storage Systems uses in the Township. The moratorium imposed 

by this Resolution is in effect for a six (6) month period, which will expire September 26, 2025, 

or until Commercial Large Scale Battery Storage Systems regulatory amendments to the 

Township's Zoning Ordinance become effective, whichever occurs first. Before this moratorium 

expires, the Township may by resolution extend the moratorium for up to six (6) months to allow 

sufficient time to complete amendments to its Zoning Ordinance, if necessary.  

 

RESOLVED BY:   

SUPPORTED BY:    

 

VOTE:   

 

ADOPTION DATE: March 25, 2025 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on March 25, 2025, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, pursuant 

to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 

1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have been made 

available as required thereby. 

 

___________________________________ 

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 



NEW BUSINESS #6 
 

Commercial Wind Energy moratorium extension. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION #2503xx 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

MORATORIUM ON WIND ENERGY PROJECTS 

2nd EXTENSION 

 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, 2006 P.A. being MCL 125.3101 et seq., 

authorizes Tyrone Township (the "Township") to adopt reasonable regulations to control the 

establishment and use of Commercial Large Scale Wind Energy Systems in accordance with the 

Township's Master Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Township has become aware of an increase of Commercial Large Scale 

Wind Energy Systems in the region, which is an emerging land use not sufficiently contemplated 

in the current Master Plan nor by the current zoning for anywhere in the Township; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Tyrone Township is in the process of reviewing its zoning for the 

purpose of updating it to include recognition of Commercial Large Scale Wind Energy Systems 

in the Township as an emerging land use in the region; and 

 

WHEREAS, integration of Commercial Large Scale Wind Energy Systems land use 

within the Township's existing land uses requires suitable regulations and controls to ensure 

compliance with the Township's Master Plan, among other things, by preserving agricultural 

property, and for the protection of general health, safety and welfare of all of the Township's 

residents; 

 

WHEREAS, this Board believes it is prudent and wise in light of the emergence of 

Commercial Large Scale Wind Energy Systems land uses in the region, to assure proper locating 

and regulation of these land uses in the Township and must consider this Resolution for 

Moratorium on Commercial Large Scale Wind Energy Systems so as to better protect the public 

health, safety, and Welfare of Township residents; and 

 

WHEREAS, imposing a moratorium, on a limited temporary basis, is reasonable and 

necessary in order to allow the Township to fully explore, analyze, research and develop proposed 

amendments to the Master Plan and the Township Zoning Ordinance, and to make 

recommendations to the Township Board regarding such amendments applicable to Commercial 

Large Scale Wind Energy Systems uses in the Township; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Tyrone Township Board previously adopted a moratorium for six (6) 

months by Resolution #240903 and which expires on March 26, 2025,  

 

 



 

2 

 

 

Resolution #2503xx 

Moratorium on Wind Energy Projects 

2nd Extension 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, a moratorium is hereby imposed upon the 

issuance of any and all permits, licenses, or approvals for any property subject to or under the 

jurisdiction of the Township's Zoning Ordinance for the establishment or use of any new 

Commercial Large Scale Wind Energy Systems uses in the Township. The moratorium imposed 

by this Resolution is in effect for a six (6) month period, which will expire September 26, 2025, 

or until Commercial Large Scale Wind Energy Systems regulatory amendments to the Township's 

Zoning Ordinance become effective, whichever occurs first. Before this moratorium expires, the 

Township may by resolution extend the moratorium for up to six (6) months to allow sufficient 

time to complete amendments to its Zoning Ordinance, if necessary.  

 

RESOLVED BY:   

SUPPORTED BY:    

 

VOTE:   

 

ADOPTION DATE: March 25, 2025 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on March 25, 2025, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, pursuant 

to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 

1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have been made 

available as required thereby. 

 

____________________________________ 

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 



NEW BUSINESS #7 
 

Commercial Solar Projects moratorium extension. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION #2503xx 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

MORATORIUM ON SOLAR PROJECTS 

4th EXTENSION 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, 2006 P.A. being MCL 125.3101 et seq., 

authorizes Tyrone Township (the "Township") to adopt reasonable regulations to control the 

establishment and use of Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy Systems in accordance with the 

Township's Master Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township has become aware of an increase of Commercial Large Scale 

Solar Energy Systems in the region, which is an emerging land use not sufficiently contemplated 

in the current Master Plan nor by the current zoning for anywhere in the Township; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Tyrone Township is beginning the process of reviewing its zoning for 

the purpose of updating it to include recognition of Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy 

Systems in the Township as an emerging land use in the region; and 

 
WHEREAS, integration of Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy Systems land use 

within the Township's existing land uses requires suitable regulations and controls to ensure 

compliance with the Township's Master Plan, among other things, by preserving agricultural 

property, and for the protection of general health, safety and welfare of all of the Township's 

residents; 

 
WHEREAS, this Board believes it is prudent and wise in light of the emergence of 

Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy Systems land uses in the region, to assure proper locating 

and regulation of these land uses in the Township and must consider this Resolution for 

Moratorium on Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy Systems so as to better protect the public 

health, safety, and Welfare of Township residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, imposing a moratorium, on a limited temporary basis, is reasonable and 

necessary in order to allow the Township to fully explore, analyze, research and develop proposed 

amendments to the Master Plan and the Township Zoning Ordinance, and to make 

recommendations to the Township Board regarding such amendments applicable to Commercial 

Large Scale Solar Energy Systems uses in the Township; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Tyrone Township Board previously adopted the most recent moratorium 

for six (6) months by Resolution #240904 and which expires on April 4, 2025, 



 

2 

 

Resolution #2503xx 

Moratorium on Solar Projects 

4th Extension 

 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, a moratorium is hereby imposed upon the 

issuance of any and all permits, licenses, or approvals for any property subject to or under the 

jurisdiction of the Township's Zoning Ordinance for the establishment or use of any new 

Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy Systems uses in the Township. The moratorium imposed 

by this Resolution is for a six (6) month period, which expires October 4, 2025, or until 

Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy Systems regulatory amendments to the Township's Zoning 

Ordinance become effective, whichever occurs first. Before this moratorium expires, the 

Township may by resolution extend the moratorium for up to six (6) months to allow sufficient 

time to complete amendments to its Zoning Ordinance, if necessary.  

 

 

RESOLVED BY:   

SUPPORTED BY:   

  

VOTE:   

 

ADOPTION DATE: March 25, 2025 

 
 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on March 25, 2025, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, pursuant 

to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 

1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have been made 

available as required thereby. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 

 



NEW BUSINESS #8 
 

Request for attorney John Gillooly of Garan Lucow Miller 
to represent the township at the public hearing to remove 
Chris Ropeta as ex-officio from the Planning Commission. 

 
(No documents) 



NEW BUSINESS #9 
 

Public Hearing Date Selection. 
 

(No documents) 


